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ADDENDUM - Request for Proposals 
For Studies of the Solids Storage Basins and CAP System Effectiveness 
 
 
The purpose of this addendum is to document Questions and Answers discussed at the RFP Bidder’s 
Meeting on June 18, 2014. 
 
1. Are the SSB ponds fed all the time?  How are SSB pond levels controlled?  Do SSB pond levels 

differ from each other? Are pond elevations maintained when not being harvested?   
The ponds are fed intermittently throughout the day, since some of the digested sludge is delivered 
to the Biosolids Recycling Facility. Pond feeding is conducted using a volume-based computer 
control strategy.  The intent of the strategy is to balance the solids loading in each pond.   Each pond 
has a vertically oriented supernatant overflow pipe in the pond. Pond levels may be below the 
overflow due to evaporation or dredging. Generally pond levels are not more than a few inches 
different from each other and not more than a foot below the overflow. In Battery I, adjacent ponds 
are connected by conduits (Pond 1 to Pond 2, Pond 3 to Pond 4, Pond 5 to Pond 6, and Pond 7 to 
Pond 8). 

The SSBs used to be continuously “flushed” with chlorinated secondary effluent to reduce the 
buildup of struvite in the piping and on the pond mixers.  Flushing often resulted with water 
(supernatant) being returned to the plant headworks via the supernatant overflow piping.  This 
practice was discontinued in 2009 to reduce the influent ammonia load, and will not be restored 
until facilities are constructed to treat this ammonia load.  Water is added to the SSB ponds as 
needed to control odors, and to support the floating Mudcats used to harvest the sludge. 
 

2. Are the SSBs lined? 
No artificial liners were installed as part of the construction of the SSBs.  However, Type C material, 
described in the contract specifications, was required in the construction of the bottom and side 
slopes of SSB Batteries II and III.  See Contract Specifications pages 24 - 76 of attached RFP 
Addendum Documents. See pages 340 – 450 of attached RFP Addendum Documents for a previous 
SSB bottom permeability study.  
 

3. Can the SSB ponds go for a week with no water added?   
Yes, and for longer periods as well, as long as the pond is fed equally.  Each pond has two feed 
points, and if not fed equally, “islands” will form. 

 
4. Are there any outside pumping that might affect the CAP system performance? 

For purposes of the proposal, assume that there is no existing pumping that would affect the CAP 
system.  The selected consultant will have access to all data related to pumping after the award of 
contract.  
 

5. Has the Regional Board said anything about the deeper wells? 
No, they have not. Regional San believes that SRWTP solids disposal operations have not affected 
the deeper aquifer. 
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6. Are the Appendices for the Annual Report on the website? 

No, they are not.  However, groundwater data from the last annual report is in Attachment D and 
well locations are in Attachment B. See laboratory report for groundwater analyses for fall 2013 on 
pages 124 - 328 of the attached RFP Addendum Documents.  
 

7. What sampling methods and analytical methods are used for groundwater sampling?  
Sampling methods are described in the 2013 Annual Report, which is Attachment G. A copy of the 
laboratory report for the fall 2013 groundwater sampling, which lists the analytical methods used, is 
included in this addendum. See pages 124 – 328 of attached RFP Addendum Documents. 

8. What design information is available for the extraction well and the monitoring well mentioned in 
Task 3 of the RFP? 
Please provide estimated costs for constructing an extraction well and a monitoring well similar to 
those for which drawings are provided in this addendum. For the monitoring well, see Monitoring 
Well Installation Report dated August 17, 2009 (pages 77 - 121 of the attached RFP Addendum 
Documents). Assume that the well is similar to MW 243. For the CAP extraction well, see plans on 
pages 9 - 13 of the attached RFP Addendum Documents.  
 

9. For the CAP Evaluation, did Shaw look at the landfill as a possible source?   
Yes, Shaw looked at the landfill along with other known sources (i.e. SSBs and DLDs), but did not 
specifically investigate the landfill.  In general, Regional San does not think the landfill is a threat 
because it has been closed since 1994. 

 
10. Please elaborate on biofouling investigations tasks listed in Task 3.  What are the expectations 

from the consultant? 
Extraction wells may be accessed from the well vaults. Consultant may propose an inspection 
procedure for pipelines. 
 

11. What area are the nitrates/salts generally elevated? 
Based on data from the six wells installed in 2009 downgradient of the SSBs, nitrates/salts are 
generally elevated towards the south.  The concentrations from the wells near Battery III are higher 
than those in wells near Battery I and other wells.  

 
12. How is the disinfection of the CAP system performed? 

Disinfection is performed quarterly and consists of pouring a volume of bleach which varies 
according to the well size, letting it sit for 24 hours before turning the pump on again, and then 
cleaning the check valve.   
 

13. Does the flow rate decrease due to biofouling?   
Yes, and note that the flowmeters typically get biofouled too. 

 
14. Is biofouling the reason the pump fails?   

Regional San has not dissected the exact cause for pump failures.  It is cheaper to replace a pump 
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than repair it, with each pump lasting 2 – 2 ½ years on average.  The pumps are typically Grundfos 
stainless steel pumps. 

 
15. What are the lined empty basins at the end of the closed DLDs? 

All of the DLDs (closed and operating) have lined runoff basins at the south end.  They are designed 
to capture runoff due to rain events, and return to plant headworks. 
 

16. Is the leachate collected and sent back to plant headworks? 
Yes. 

 
17. Is this RFP in response to an NOV or any other enforcement order? 

No, it is in response to verbal statement from the Regional Board; therefore, there are also no due 
dates or timetable for deliverables at this time. Regional San is in the process of applying for a 
renewal of its Waste Discharge Requirements.  During initial discussions with the Regional Board 
permitting staff, they indicated that they would like to know whether or not the SSBs are impacting 
the underlying groundwater. 

 
18. Are the extraction wells in the SCADA system?  

No, pump and/or flow information from the individual extraction pumps are not on the SCADA 
system.  Only the CAP Totalizer Flowmeter that is installed where the CAP flows are discharged to 
either the secondary effluent channel or delivered to the Demonstration Wetlands is on the SCADA 
system.  Incidentally, these discharges are covered under Regional San’s NPDES discharge permit. 

 
19. Are water levels measured in the monitoring wells continuously by transducers? 

No, they are measured manually (well wizard) twice per year, as required. 
 

20. Are groundwater analytical results compiled in a database? 
Yes, they are compiled in an Access database. 

 
21. Where is the extracted groundwater discharged?  

Individual flows are collected into a common manifold and currently discharged, untreated, at about 
250-300 gallons per minute.  It was anticipated that the system would deliver up to 1 MGD; 
however, it averages 0.3-0.5 MGD.  

 
22. What is the rough cost for installing an extraction well?  

Regional San does not have any current information on the cost of installing extraction wells. For 
estimating purposes, assume that the extraction well installation terminates just downstream of the 
flowmeter.  
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